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Abbreviationr, Acronyms and Glossery of Terms

A. Abbrevi.tions And Acronyms

t

A
t

I

*

CEO

DG

CBK

ICPAK

IPSAS

MD

NT

ocoB

OAG

OSHA

PFM

PPE

PSASB

SAGAs

Chief Executive Officer

Director General

Cenral Bank of Kcoya

Institute ofCertified Public Accountants of Kenya

Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

Managing Director

National Treasury

Office of the Confroller of Budget

Office of the Audiior General

Occupatiooal Sa&ty and Health Act of2007

Public Finance Managemeot t'

Prop€rty Plant & Equipmmt

Public Sector Accouating'Standards Board

Semi-Autonomow Govemrnent Agencies

B. Glossary of Tcrms

Fiduciary mrnrgement- Memben of management entrusted directly with the responsibility
and trust for the orgauisationlnancial resources.

(This list is an i,tdicqtioa ol the common acronyms and abbreviatio,t$ : the County should include all from the

annud report atd Jinaacial storements prupared)

o
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2, Key Fund information and management

a) Background Information

National Land Commission Ilousing Schenre Fund is established by and derives its authority and

accountability from The Public Finance Management Act (No. l8 of 2012) in the financial year

2018/20t9.

The Fund is rvholly owned by National Land Commission and is domiciled in Kenya.

b) PrincipalActivities

The Fund's principal acti\ity is 1o of'fer low interest loan facilities to staff members of the

conrmission to access affordable housing.

The Fund is administered by the National bank of Kenya (NBK). There is a committee charged

with the responsibility ofprocessing loans from applicants in accordance with laid down approved

regulations, setting up a revolving Fund tbr the disbursement ofloans, and supervising the day-to-

day operations ofthe Fund.

c) Board of Trustees/Fund Administration Committee

3 F und I\{anagcr/Administrator Nrrtit.rnll tslnk of Kelrye

2

Prof. David KuriaI Chairperson

I . CPA, Bernard Cherutich

2. Mr.Ben Bett Tuwai

3. Mr.Edmond Gichuru

Kiplagat

-1. Mr. Joseph Muthomi

Committee Members
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,4nnual Reporls ond Financial Statemenls
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d) Key Management

The key managenrent personnel who held office dtiring the financial year ended 30 June 2023

and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

Mr. Molramed Farah

Mr.Peter Ochuodho Ouma

I

Head, Infonnation & Communication Technology

(HICT)

Head Communication, Corporate Affairs & Ad'ocacy Mr.Walter Menya

j Mr. Amos Parletuan Kasaine

13.

NLC day+o-day, management is under tlie follorving key organs:

Nine (9) Conrmissioners comprising ci lhe Chairman and Eight (tl) Commissioners. The

Cotnmissioners rvere engagcd on a lull-timc basrs. l'hc Ctrmmissiotters assttmcd ofllce rn

Decerrbcr2019 aftcr the first Ct;mn:ission cat:re to an enC in I--ebruar1 20l9

The Sccrclariat is h"'adcC bi thc Sccrctl'.v '-'hicf f:xccL:ti''c OIficer sulportccl b1' glgvqn 1l I t

Dircctors and Countv c rrortlin ui irilr otfic,.'s actoss thc i7 r.:ounii.'s. Thc F.ntiti'o1ficcs arc hcadcd

Lr)/ thc Coun() coot(!irlltdr-s.

Kabale Tache AreroSecretaryiChief Executive Officer (CEO)

Dr. Samuel NthuniDeputy Director, Public Land Infonnation

lvlanagement (PLIIvl)

I

Mr. Charles Kagema3 Director Land Use Planning (DLUP)

Dr. Mar1, Wandia Macharia4 Deputy Director Research

Mr. Bernard Kibet Cherutich5 Director Finance & Planning (DFP)

IVIs. Joycelyn Makena6 Director Valuation & Taxation (DVT)

7 Director Land Administration (DLA) Prof. David Kuria

8 Director Legal Affairs & Regulatory (DLAR) Mr. Brian lkol

9 Ag. Director Human Resource and Adrninistration

(DHRA)

I M.. B"n Bett Tuwai

l0 Head Supply Chain Management (HSCM)

u Head Audit & Risk Management (HARM)

11
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e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Committee is guided by the Audit Committee Charter that outlines its mandate and powers

The main responsibilitics include rcvicw of financial information, ensuring adherence to and./or

compliancc rvith various lc,gislations, professional standards and Comtnission policies while

maintaining oversight on intemal control systems. The Committee also revrews, advises and makes

recommendations regarding the Commission's risk management. The members of this Committee

during the quarter under review were:

Commissioner Prof. James Tuitoek -Chairman

Commissioner Hon.Tiyah Galgalo . -Member

Commissioner Mr. Reginald Okumu -Member

Commissioner Gertrude N. Nguku -Member

HARM Mr. Peter ochuodho -secretary

Finance, Corporate Planning & Supply Chein lv anegement Committee

The functions of this Committee include guiding on policy, processes and procedures on financial

management in the Commission; sourcing for funds to the Commission budget; oversight over the

nlanagement of funds of the Commission including procurement; and guidance on ICT issues of

the Commission including provision of conducive working environment and working tools. The

membcrs of this Committee during thc quarter under review were:

Commissioner
,0nrnissioncr
Cornmissione r
/.'onrnr iss ioncr

HSCNI
CP

Ilon.Kazungu Kambi
A Iister Murinri
Hubbie Hussein Al -Haji
IIon.Trvah Galgalo
l 1r Ber::ard Kibct Ch':rutich
i\lohamed Farah
Tinrothy Kariuki

-Chairman
-Menrb!'r
-Mernbcr
-Menrber
-Se,-'rci:riat
-Secretariat
-Secretariat
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t
u* Hu"r", Resource and Adnrinistration Committee

The functions of this Comnrittee include guiding on policy. processes and procedures on staff

management in the Commission; oversight over the management of human capital of the

Commission including guidance on human resource management policy, staff recruitment, stalf

devclopmcnt and remuncration. The merrbers of this Cornmittce during thc quarter under revieu'

,

were:

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioncr

Cornmissioner

Ag.DHRMA,

[iubbie Hussein .{l Haji

Kazungu Kambi

Alister Munmi

Hon. Tiyah Galgalo

Mr Ben Bett

I{cginald Okumu
IJ Lrbbie tlussein Al iJaji
I Ion. Esther Nl.lvlathengc
Proil i)avid Iidcgwa Kuria
Dr. Ilarv N{acharia

-Chairlady

-Member

-Member

-Member

-Secretariat

-Chainnan
-N'lcrnber
-lvlernber
-Sccrctaliat
-Secrerariat

r)

Land Administration & Management, Natural Resources, Survey & GIM Committee
The functions of this Committee are to advise the Commission on the natural resources and

rcsearch aspects for sustainable land management; resolve natural resource and land usc conflicts
among stakeholders; ensure that sustainable land management is achieved by all state agencies

rcsponsible for its management: determine the capacity needs of the Commission in achieving its

suslainable land management; rcvicw policies, guidclincs, proccdurcs and processes necessary for
the Conrmission ro achieve its rnandate in natural resources; detemrine necessary inten entions, at

policy and operational levels required for the Cornmission to rcalizc its oversight roles in natural
resources management; detemrine the types of research necessary to achieve sustainable Iand

management as provided for in the COK Article 67 (2) (d): and ensure that there is adequate

communicatior,s to the cilizens of Kenya on the Commission's rrandatc in the management of land

and land resources,
The Committee dischargcs scrnc'of thc most vital functions of the Commission including approval
ofapplications tbr change ofuser; approval ofapplications lor allocation ofpublic iand; approval

ol cxtcnsion of leases; approval of applications for setting apali of tmst land: approval of
applications lor renewal oi leases; approval of applications by Courrty Covernments tbr land

excliangc with i;rdividuals for public good; and discharge of approvals relating to or incrdental to

tl,lc functions ct'tlrc Commission. Thc membcrs of this Conrmittcc during thc y(-ar tinCcr r!'vicw
were:
Comnrissioner
Corlr-'r issionc'r
Cclnrrliss ioncr
t)LA,
DDR

\'!
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Land Valuation & Taxation Committee
The Constitutional mandate of this Committee is assessment of tax on land and premiums on

immovable property in any area designated by law (Article 67(2\ (9. The Committee sets policy

direction and formulates rules, regulations and guidelines in respect to assesment of gtound rents

and stand premiums ofnew allocations; acquisition and compensation for public rights ofway and

waylcave as provided in the Land Act 2012 Sections 142-150; change of user and extension ol
usL'l lease renewals and cxtensions; sub-division of land; assesment and collection of rents,

royalties and payments in respect to leases or licences; compulsory acquisition of land both at

National and CountyGovernment levels. The Cornmittee also provides oversight and guidance on

key legal matters affecting the Commission including legal interpretations on the position ofthe
Conrniission in regard to various cases at hand. The Committee is involved in the prioritisation of
the inherited court cases and also any new cascs arising out of land transactions. The Committee

also guides on altemative dispute resolution methods with the aim ofreducing the number ofcourt

cases to a bare minimum. Where and when necessary, the Committee seeks clarity from the courts

and the Attorney General's office on any grey areas in the wrinen law. The Committee also guides

and reviews on investigations related to land matters touching on the Commission. The members

of this Committee during the year under review were:

Commissioner
Commissioner
Comnrissioner
Commissioner
DVT

L om:nrssioncr
l ornnrissioner
i;ll;r: rssioner
Con)ln issioner
DLAAJ.

Alister Murimi
Gertrude N.Nguku
Ester M.Mathenge
Hon. Kazungu Kambi
Ms. Joycelyn Makena

(icrtrudc N. N guk
r\lrstcr !lurrmi

Est.'i M.i\{athenge
Nlr. ilrian r\dungo Ikrr I

-Chairman
-Member
-Member
-Member
-Secretariat

-Chatrpcrson
-\ lcntbcr'
'l 1,:n:bcr

-l\,1em ber
-Sccretariat

Legal Affairs & Alternative Justice Systems Committee
Thi Committee provides oversight and guidance on key legal matters affecting the Commission

including legal interpretations oi the position of the Commission in regard to various cases at

hand. The Committee is involved rn the prioritisation of the inherited court cases and also any new

cascs arising out of land transactions. The Committee also guides on alternative dispute resolution

methods wiah the aim of reducing the number of court cases to a bare minimum. Where and when

treccssary, the Committee seeks clarity from the courts and the Attomey General's office on any

grey areas in the written law. Thc Commlttee also guides and reviervs on investtgations related to

ionl n,rtt".r touching on the Cornnr ission.The rnembers of this Contmittee during the year under

rct'icrt rvcre:
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l
..q", Land Use Planning, Research & Counties Cosnmittee'

The functions of this Committee are to advise the Commission on the natural resources and

rcscarch aspects for sustainable land management; rcsolve natural rcsourcc and land use conflicts
among stakeholders; ensure that sustainable land management is achieved by all state agcncic's

responsible for its managementl determine the capacity needs of the Commission in achieving its

srstainable land management; review policies, guidelines. procedures and processes necessary for
the Commission to achieve its mandate in natural resourccs; determine necessary interventions, at

policy and operational levels required for the Commission to realize its oversight roles in natural

tesources management; determine the tr?es of research necessary to achieve sustainable land

ntanagement as provided for in the COK Article 67 (2) (d); and eusure tlrat there is adequate

comrnunications to the citizens of Kenya on the Commission's mandate in thc management of land
and land resources.
The Committee discharges some of the most vital functions of the Commission including approval

ofapplications for change ofuser: approval ofapplications lor allocation ofpublic land; approval
of extension of leases; approval of applications for setting apart of trust land: approval of
applications for renewal of leases; approval of applications by County Govemments for land

exchange with individuals for public good; and discharge of approvals relating to or incidental to

the functions of the Commission.Thc members of this Committee during thc year under review
were:
Commissioner
Commissioner
Commissioner
Commissioner
DLUP&R

Corporate Communication, Advocacy, Partnerships & Resource lllobilization Committee

Thc functions ofthis Committee include guiding on policy, processes and procedures on Corporate

Communication management in the Commission; sourcing for funds to the Commission budget;

oversight over the management of funds ofthe Commission including procurement; and guidance

on ICT issues of the Cornnrission including provision of conducive u'orking environtnent and

u'orking tools. The members of this Committee during the year under rcvieu' rvcrc:

)

Commissioner
Comrnissioner
Conrmissioner
Cornmissioncr
HICT
I{CCA

Hon. Esther M.Mathenge
Prof.James K.Tuitoek
Gertrude Nguku
Reginald Okumu
Mr. Charles Kagema

Hon.Tiyah Galgalc
Reginald Okurnu
llubbie Hussein Al -lla_ii
Hon.Kazungu Kambt
l\lr. Anros Parletuart Kasairtc
Mr Walte'r Menva

-Chairperson
-N{ember
-Member
-Member

-Secretariat

-Charnnan
-Member
-llL'nlber
-\4,-'mbc'r
-Sccretariat
-St-cretariat

Ol-t cr Oversight Artiviti{:
)iLC has rcgular liaisou *ith the Parliametrtarl'Conttnittcc on land lo ensu,c tilitt

are propcrll' addrcss.'cl and legislarc-d. Sinriiailv Parliatllcntan' Co::rnritie':

issLrcs of land

()n RudsetJrv
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Appropriations and the National Treasury has oversight on the Commission's budgetary

requirements, allocations and utilisation.

Registered Offices
Entity Headquerters

National Land Commission Headquarters

P.O. Box.144l7-00100

316 Upper Hill Chambers

2nd Ngong Avenue

Nairobi, KENYA

0 Fund Contrcts

Telephone: 0l I1042800

E-mai[: info@[andcomission.go.ke

Website: www.landC ission-so.ke

g) Fund Bankers

National Bank of Kenya

Upper Hill Branch

NHIF Building

P O Box 45219

GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

Independent Auditors

Auditor-General

Office of the Auditor Gencral

Anniversary Torvers, University Way

P.O. Box 3008.1

GPO 00100

Nairobi. Kcnya

l\
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) Principal Legal Advlser

The Attomey General

State Law Office and Department ofJustice

Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 40112

City Square 00200

Nairobi,

Kenya

o

(:)

)
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3. The Board of Trustees/ Fund Administration Committee

Prof. David Kuria is a licensed surveyor and a full member of the

Instirution of Survey of Kenya (lSK). He holds a PhD in Civil
Engineering from the University of Tokyo, Japan, MSc in

Geoinformatics and Photogrammetry from the Stuftgart

University of Applied Sciences, Germany and a BSc in Survefng
from the University of Nairobi.
Hc hes over 24 years' cxpcricnce in managemcnt, teaching and

research gained tiom serving in various roles at Jomo Kcnyatta

Univcrsity of Agriculturc :nd Technology. Dedan Kimathi

University of Technology and at the National Land Commission.

Prof Kuria is widely pub[shed in the arca of Geo-lnformation
Nlanagement with morc than -10 publtcations to his credit. He has

scrved as Chairman ofthe Geomatic Engineering and Geospatial
lnformation Science (GEGIS) Department and Director of the

Institute of Geomatics, GIS and Remote Sensing (lGCReS) while
at the Dedan Kimathi University of Technology.
Prof. Kuria has been with the Commission dince 2013 as a

director. He is currently the Director of the Land Administration
and Mana ent Directoratc
Bemard Cherutich is a seasoned Financial Management
Professional with experience spanning more than 22 years in
Finance, Accounting, Administration and Planning.

I'le joined the Commission in 2014 as the Deputy Director,
Finance and Administration Directorate before he rose, in 2018,

to his current position of Director, Finance and Corporate

Planning. Prior to joining the Commission, he worked in senior

management positions in various institutions including the

Commission for the Implementation of the Constitution (CIC),
Kenya Seed Company Ltd, Simlaw Seed Company Ltd,
Postbank and the Kenya National Examination Council (KNEC)
Nir. Cherutich is currently pursuing a Doctorate degree (PhD) in
Brrsincss Administration at thc Jomo Kenyatta Univcrsity of
..\griculture and Technologl-, .IKU,\T. He holds a Nlasters ol
3irsincss Administration (),:PA) - Financc. from thc samc

:t-,ir.:utlon and a Bitchelor.j; -jir'l]cc {3Sc.) rn Applied
.r ,jc{)Lrnts from Oxford Brrxlk':s l-lniv'-'isitl. (JK. IJc is a

i [,:rtrlled Public .\ccountanl L PA (K) eird a lull member oi the

, .!r.rli(tilc of Certtilcd PubliL :\!e()utli.rrtLs oi [.'cttya (iLi)AK)air'.1
..lso .r rncmbcr olCcrtiticd l'i:bhc Sccrctary'{('i'S)

i 1'. rle.'p understanding 6l'llrr,rtcill nlaltigenl!'nt hls enabled

ol th,i Cornnr ission's ntand; !r9 !1r!Ig!ory. o-t_tuUtSjlt1!9sic _

.^t

Prol David Kuria-
Chairperson

. P,\. Benrrrd Cherutrch-
i.l :rrrhcr

;i,rl) t() continually providc c:i;;crt optnion in thc inlplcnlr'lltation

It
\
I

\
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Ben Bett Tuwai-Member

leadership and financial guidance to ensure the Commission is

able to meet rts ob ectives and serve its clicnts effectivel
Mr. Ben Betl has a wealth of experience in providing Human
Resource leadership having sen'ed in the industry for a period

spanning over 20 years. He joined the Conrmission in 2014 as a

County Coordinator and later redesignated to be Deputy Director
Human Resources Management. Prior to joining the Commission,
he worked in the banking sector where he rose through the ranks

to become a Senior Human Resources Officer. He has a strong
passion in Human Resources Manaqemettt, Transformative
Leadership and Organizational Develop;nent.
He is a Certified Human Resoutce Professional - Ker,ya (CHRP-

K). Furthcr, hc holds a Mastcr of Sciencc (MSc) Dcgree in Human

Resource Management from Jomo Kenyatta University of
Agriculture and Technology (JKUAT), a Bachelor of Education
(Arts) Degree (Business Studies and Economics) from the

University of Nairobi, Higher Diploma in Human Resources

Management and Executive Certificatc in lndustrial Relations
amongst others. He is a full member of the Institute of Human
Resource Management (IHRM) and also a member of the

American Global Academy of Finance Management and a Fellow
of Arnerican Academy of Project Management - Association and

Platforms. Mr. Bett has attended numerous professional trainings
and career development programs both locally and

intemationally.
Mr. Bett is responsible for providing leadership in the

management and coordination of activities in the lluman
Resource Management and Administration Dircctoratc. Thc

activities that are coordinated by the Dircctor includcs but not

limited to overall human rcsourcc stratcgy. training, employcc
development. human rcsource and budget forecasting,
organizational development, employee relations and general

administrativc servicss. Hc has also been vcry itrstrut:rcntal in

setting up Hurnan Resources and Administration felated

structures for the Commission including tl:c devolvcd uniis i.e.,

Coun Coordinaticn otflces

Edmond Cichunr is an AC','ocat': cf rlic Fli-ql: Court trf Kcnva u ith
ol'er l7 ycars of experience. lie :s a holder ol':: )'hster of Larvs

from Syracuse Universiiy, New Ycrk. i N4aste'r of AIls in

International Studies fronr Unilersity of Neilob: ar,d a Bachelor

of Larvs from Mot University.

CichurLr has hcld scnior posi,ior;s i;t l-,c11: r,;,.blic :ur,-l

pnvate sectors. l{c is ctLrrcntly thc DcPutv Drrectoi oi Lcgll and

A.ltemati.i e iusticc llc has consttltcd tcr rcsiii;r:l! :lnd rr)i,'malional

t_
I

E,.lurond Cichr,ru K;plagal-
iVlcnrber organizations artJ is *itlclr publrsllc-d

l
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t

Joseph Muthomi- Member

Mr- Joseph Muthomi is a Principal land administration and a full
member of the Institution of Survey of Kenya (lSK). He has

immense experience on land administratton having worked at the

Ministry of land and physical plaming for many years

7. Fund administrator National Bank of Kenya

litil
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.1. Management Tearn

Gershom 0tachi B'wonamrva-

Chairman

{ ittrude Nduku Ng,rku - 7!te-

Com;nissioner Gershom Otachi is the Chairman of the

National Land Commission and a graduate of the University

of Nairobi (LLB, 1989). He was admitted ro the Bar in 1990.

He has been irr Legal practice as an Advocate for 29 years,

appearing be(bre all levels of Courts antj Specialized

Tribunals in Civil, Crirninal, Land and property, Succession

and Election disputes besides practice in othcr aspects of

Commercial law and Conveyancing. He has also

simultaneously practiced law in international courts for a

period of over twenty years, He has served as the Chairman

in two State Corporations; Policy Holders' Compensation

Fund (PHCF) and Ceothennal Development Company

(GDC) for a total of six years. He is a member of the Law

Society ol Kenya, East Afiican Law Society. Intemational

Commission of Jurists (Kenya), lntemational Criminal Bar

(ICB), lntcrnational Association of Dcfiance Larvvers

(IADAD). Association of Dcttncc Lawycrs at the UNICTR

(ADAD) of which he was Vicc'-Chairman tbr 6 years and is

on the ICC list of Counsel.

GcrtrcCc liduiru Nguku is thc Vice Chairperson of the

Nationai Lanci C'cmmission. She is a Kenvan Advocate who

,vas admitted to tire bar in 1990. Si',e holds a [-LB degree liom

thc U;:iversitl, oi':',,lalrobj irttti a lVlastcr ol Advartced Str.rdies

in Peace and Conflici Stritli.'s lit.rttr tltc Europcan Uni''ersit)

Ccntcr tbi Pcacc Studies tn A-ustria. Shc lras rescarched and

w'rittcn,.'xtcnsively, on ltlrni:ristrativc and managclllcllt

retbn'ns of [(gn1rx l"'1'r iau' lnd policy to cnd con{lict and

structurrl n:uiginlii;:atrort. -1.re is a lecc,5l:ized Linited

t

i ', irai;

\l
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Hon, Samwel Kazungu Kambi -

Commissioner

Hon. Commissioner Samwel Kazungu Kambi holds a

Master in Busincss Administration (MBA) from University of

East Africa, Baraton and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in

Development Studies from the same University. He worked

as a Manager at Post Bank from 1990 to 1992, He started his

political joumey as a Member of Parllament for Kaloleni

Constituency from 2007-2012. He served as an Assistant

\4rnister lor Mcdical Services from 2008 to 2013 under the

Co;r jition Govcrnmctrt.

ln t'lr'.' l0l.-1, Hon. Kazungu Kambi r"lts nominated by

?r",:si':l'::',1 '-"':rr''J Kcnyatta as a Cabinc't Sccret:rry (CS) tbr the

\linrstry oi Labour and Social Services. a position he hr'ld

lio:ll - ) i-l r,) l() I 5. During his tenurc hc '.,'ls instrumental in

sperrhc.rdrng lransrtion ol staff tionl i ''.rtional to the 'll

Nations lcgal and judicial reform expert who

govemments on issues of land management, adjudication,

settlemcnt, investigations and registration.

She represented public and private clients during litigation

advised lntentational Judge Panels during

investigatrons, trial and appeal of land, comrption and war

crirne cases. She managed a United Nations Operations land

program as a Deputy Head to investigate, adjudicate and

mediate on historical land injustices and illegal occupations

in Kosovo, Serbia and Macedonia. As an Advisor of the

United Nations Police Commissioner in Timor-Leste,

she collaborated with development partners, national and

municipality govemment authorities to spearhead

the development of the first administrative and

investigation policy ofthe police Vulnerable Persons Unit.

cases

has advised

in Kenyaand arbitration of land
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County govemments. While at the helm as a Cabinet

Secretary for Labor and Social Scrvices, Hon. Kambi oversaw

NSSF increase its revenue from Ksh 400m to Ksh. L2 billion

by the time he u,as leaving. He revived National Industrial

Training Authority (NITA). and was instrumental in the

establishment of the National Employment Authority vide an

Act of Parliament which seeks to corulect .1ob seekers with

employers. IIe enhanced the growth of the National Cash

Transt'er Program, a support pro$am for the elderly and the

disabled from 1000 to over 7000 beneficiaries.

At the Child Welfare Association. he spearheaded

establishment of the National Adoption Society and the

National Emergencf Response, Welfare and Rescue

Organization for children through a legal notice No. 58 of

23105/1955.He has scrved as the Chairman of Coast

Dcvelopmcnt Authority and also as a Director at thc Betting

Control and Licensing Board. He is pursuing a Doctorate of

Philosophy (PhD) in Finance and Management at Baraton

University.

Prol'. Janres K Tuitoek joineci the Conrmission in Noventber.

30 I 9 and brings on board over 3 5 years' 'wealth of experience

l'rom divcrse backgrounds. A resc'arch spccialist with a bias

towards animal science, Plof l uitock holds a PhD frorn the

Univcrsity of Guelph. Canada. lr{Sc in Anirnal Scicnce,

Unir ersity oflvlanitoba Canada and a BSc in Agrrculture liom

thc Universitv of Nairobi.

Prol Tuitocli has inrnrense r'\periencc itt thc area i',1

\{anagcrr-,cnt anrl A.dltinislrat iott l:avittg scrrr.'d itt rart,rtts

scnior ntana-gemcnt rcles at th,i Egerton Univcrsitl' lLrr a

conrbined tcriod.rF lq ycars. hirllof wliiclt lre rr':is al titc ltclt:r

rl

Prof. .iames K- Tuitock -

Co:nmissioner

\\ I
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Hubbie Hussein Al-Haji -

Commissioner

of the University as the Vice Chancellor. Prior to this, he also

served as a Lecturer, Dean of Faculty (Agriculture) and

Deputy Vice Chancellor (Adminrstration and Finance). Prof.

Tuitoek played a key role in the management of University

Pension Plans, he was also instrumental in establishing

lavourable ernployee/ labour rclations and corporate

govemance.

Pro[ Tuitoek is atso thc Chainlan of the Audit &

Management Committee of the Commission and a mem

other Commission Committees.

Commissioner Hubbie Hussein Al-haji was the County

Executive Committee member in Garissa County having held

two different departrqents lbr the period between 2013 and

2017. She was first in charge of Agriculture, Livestock,

Fisheries and lrrigation lor Garissa County, she later held the

same position in the department of Health Services; this

follows the devolution of service from a national govcmment

to a County government. During her tenure several policies

have becn passed and initiative taken to attain thc objective of

the ministry. Under the Health docket, Carissa County was

ranked as the best County in Kenya in the area of matemal

and new bome health, due to enhanced ref'enal mechanism

and the established.

Ms. Ilubbie is a fomrer Executit e Director, and a founding

rnL'nr t',cr of \! omankind Kcn;-a 1 \v tl ( IK E ). It rvas ibundcd in

1989 as a welfare society by loclrl Somali pastoral women

r.r'h(r sere cc,nrmilted to il't-rpr3\'ilg rhc living stantlards and

thc l*cl of dccision ntcking t.rl'thcir l'ellorv pastoral \\'olncn

arld ihc girls rn tlte Nortlt ditstc-rit ;..", Inc:. Thlcugh irer rvork

at thc' organizi.rtion. she has beert itrstruurental in helping the

\i ll
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community develop and institutionalize unique, innovative

approaches to eradicate poverty, human rights abuse and

empowcr women to foster community sustainability.

Ms. Ilubbie is also a former member of the Pay Review Board

of the Kenya Armed Forces (Kenya Defence Forces) for the

year 2009 to 2012. The major responsibility had to

continuously revicw and assess the work condition of the

Kenya rnilitary personnel and recommend favorable worklng

conriitions.

Ms. Hubbie is also a former member of the famous Bomas of

Kenya delegates for the Constitution Review; she was an

active member of the legal committee, which was then chaired

by Prof. Kivutha Kibwana (Current Govemor of Makueni

County). She played a critical role in looking in to a devolved

govemance system, the major focus by then was federalism.

In 2006, she was arvarded the Ralph Stone Memorial Award

in recogaition ofher leadership in difficult circumstances and

exemplary performance. In 2010 the President of Kenya

awarded her with the prestigious award of the Order of the

Moran of the Buming Spear (MBS) and also the UN Human

Rights Cf'fice iecognised hei efforls along with the two other

people in Kenya for their outstanding performance in Human

Rights advocacy. Ms Hubbie is an expert in Sustainable

Dcvelopnrent. Livelihooci and food security as well as Gender

anri l-Iunran Right

tvttl
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Reginald Okumu - Commissioner

Conrmissioner Reginald Okumu- is a seasoned professional

with 20 (+) years of experience leading both profit and non-

protit organizatipns including being Chairman of the

Institution ol Survel'ors Kenya and Board Member, National

Housing Corporation. He has served in various capacities

including Chief Operating Offlccr, Director, Senior Valuer,

Real Estate Development Advisor and Commercial

Negotiator rn diff'ert'nt privatc scctor organizations and

professional serviccs,/consultancy firms. Commissioner

Okumu is a Full Member of the Institution of Surveyors of

Kenya, Practicing Valuer and Estate Agent by profession. flp.

holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration frolr

Slrathmore Business School. a Bachelor's Degree in Land

Econonrics from the University of Nairobi, a Post Graduate

Diploma in Valuation and Estate Management Surveying

from the Institution of Surveyors of Kenya and Certificate in

Land Administration in Afiica Scarching for Land Tenure

Security from the World Bank Institute. Commissioner

Okumu is well conversant with the land estate sector. having

specific expertise on land usc and hands on experience in

acquisition, development, valuation, management and

disposal. Contmissioner okumu professional background,

cducation and cxpericncc have contributed to equip hint $ ith

r!'levant knowlcdgc attd rvell-roultdcd skills including

ncgotiations. jlrittesrc plannlni:. burlding team"vork.

c0r'rnrut'uc3ti(',) ttnLl :-t:lli:il,ll'lct-,-"lgilgelllatlt

L
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Hcn. Tiyah Galgalo-Cor:rmissioner

Hon. Tiyah Galgalo rs a Commissioner at National Land

Commission, Kcnya. Sire is a former legislator, a seasoned

public administrator, an educationist and is passionate about

mentoring pastoralist girls.

She has vast experience in Consultancy work in Research,

Govemancc, and Education among others. In addition to that,

a champion for Disaster Risk Reduction (DRR), Govemance

& Gcnder, Monitoring & Evaluation and Resource

Mobilization.

Hon. Tiyah Galgalo holds a Bachelors in Education from

Kenyatta University and a Masters in Educational

Administration and Planning from the University of Nairobi

and prevrously servcd as the Women Representative for Isiolo

County from 2013-2017 .

In 2009-201 l, Hon. Galgalo served as a Commissioner at

lnterim Independent Electoral Commission (llEC) Kenya.

2004-2009 a member of the National Commission on Gender

and Dcvelopment. 201 7-2019 a County Exccutive Committee

member (CECll), in charge of public service & county

administration, Toulisnr. Wildlife, Trade Cooperativc,

Industrialization and Enterprise Developmcnt.

During rhe period of 1008-2009 sl.c scrved as a

Coml'nissioncr ol' P(]\ cri\ [raCication Cr;tnttrission front. In

addition. shc rvas an lirncrgcncy Hducational OlTiccr and

r Head of Kisr,unu Ficld Ofllcc TUNIC EF: Kenya County

Cttlcc) 2008-2009. r Prcgranr Clficer (Pastoralist

Dev..lopr:rent Nct{ork) l{105-1009. also scn'ed as the

i)rincipal Isiolo Girls FIigh School tiorr 1992-100-1. She is a

fbundcl nrer;ber cl Foundatir.ln tbr Prstoralists Womcn

]"\
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Hon.Esther M. Mathengc-

Commissioner

Hon. Esther Murugi Mathenge ECH is currently a

Commissioner with the National Land Commission, Kenya

who has vast experience on matters ofland administration and

Valuation and Estate Agents.

Shc scrves as a Council Member to thc University ofT angaza.

Tangaza University is a conslituent college of Catholic

University of East Africa (CUEA) working towards a chaner.

She was appointed in February 2020.T'he role of the Council

is to direct the affairs of the University.

Hon. Esther M. Mathenge is the current chair of the

University Council's Corporate Affairs Committee.

of the Committee is amongst others to oversee

University's compensation and benefits policies, evaluate

senior executive performance, oversee succession planning

for the senior management and to review and to recommend

to the Univcrsity Council corporate govemance guideUnes

and the Code of Conduct for the University. She is also a

trustcc of thc Nairobi Hospital.

Hon. Esther M. l\'lathenge has a Master's Degree lrom the

LINIVESITA CATTOLICA DEL SACRO CUORE in Global

Busincss and Sustainability in Social Entrerrreneursh irr '

Shc holds a BA rn Land Econolttics liorn thc University of

Nairobi, and ls .r registclcd rttciribcr of ilic lnstltutc cf

Surveyors in tht'\/cluation and Estate Agents'Chapter and

Land \lanagcnterrt { haPter.

(FOPOWA) and patron of Baliti FM Community Radio

(lsiolo).

\.il
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il{abale Tache Lrero

Hon. Esther M. Mathenge worked with Govemment of Kcnya

as Land Administrator and several real estate companies.

Hon. Esther M. Mathenge has been a meurber of parliament

representing Nyeri Town Constituency from 2008- 2017. As

a lvlember of Parliarnent. her job was to represent the people;

Icgislate and oversight both the executive and.;udiciary.

Hon. Esther IvI. Ilathenge has had opporlunlty to se!1e as a

Minister (currently referred lo as Cabinet Secret"aries) for nvo

ministries. She was the minister for Gender, Children and

Social Affairs. This involved the formulatior for the care of

children and most r,ulnerable in society i.e. Elderly and

persons with disability (2008-2010).

She also served as the Minister of Special Progratnmes. The

appointment entailed dealing with disasters both manmade

and natural. Her responsibrlities also required her to formulate

disaster management and [{lV policies (2010-2013)

Hon. Esther M. iVlathenge has a lovc for u'ornen and

encourages them to step up and aim high. She has in the past

worked very closely wrth intemational organization

SORPTIMIST INTERNATIONAL Kenyan Chapter. This

orgar)ization worked nith wonlen io inrprove their social

economic and education standaids. She sen'ed as the

Chrirpcrson of tlie Kenya C'l:rptt-r in ( I 99:S-1001 ).

*as appointcd as thc CirO 0f th c

)Jational Lan,l ('onrmission on l' July 2u:.1. sr)L' \\'3s

instrumentai in nranrging the transition ibllo*'ing thc cxil o1'

tbrmer commissiolrers and lne inconring of the. thcn, nc* i;"

appoiitctl comr,rissii,r,ers. ts-'lirle hcr a[)l-,oinlil]!'nt ro l]cr

h
Y

):i(rl



Notional Land Commission Housing Scheme fund
Annual Reports and Financial Stalements
For the year ended June 30th 2023

Ms. Kabale Teche Arero-

Secretary/Chief Executive Ofllcer.

current position, she was Director of Human Resources and

Administration. She holds a Master's Degree in Business

Administration (MBA) from Kenyatta University and a

Bachelor's Degree in Human Resources. She is a full member

of the Institute of Human Resource Management among other

professional bodies.

Ms. Kabale is a seasoned career professional with over 20

years' wealth of successful experience providing human

Resources, Operational and Strategic leadership in uniquely

challenging environments. Dynarqic, results-oriented leader

with a strong track record of performance in both Govemment

and quasi Govemment institutions including the banking

sector. She is exemplary at the utilization of keen analysis,

insights and team approach to &ive organizational

improvements and implementation of best practices. Her

superior interpersonal skills have in the past, enabled her to

resolve multiple and complex issues while atso motivating

staff to peak perlormance.

xxllt
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5. Chairman of the Board ofTrustees NLC Housing Scheme Fund Report

h is n:y pleasu;e to present, on behalf of the Fund Management Committee, The National Land

Cornmissicn's Housing scheme fuqd financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2023. The

financial statemeuts present thc fiuancial performattce ofthe fund over the accounting period.

Naticnal Land Commission Housing Scheme Fund is established by and derives its authority and

accountability frcrn The Public Finance Management Act (No. l8 of 2012) in the financial year

201 8/201 9. The Fund is wholly owned by National Land Commission Housing i'-und and rs

domicile<i in Kenya.

The fund's objective is to facilitate state officers and other public officers within the Commission

to benefit from government funCed loans to access Moirgage loan facilities.

The CEO oi National Land Commission being the accounting officer of the Conrmission was

appointed the signatory ofthe fund.

The Nationa! Land Commission Housing Scheme Fund was established in the financial year

2018/2019. The f'unding were obtained from the parent entity being the National Land

Commission.

2022i).023 !(r.000.000

Transt-er from Car Loan 2C,000,000

1,37,57),643

During tlre vcar undcL rcl'ics' anci arrount ofKsh. 2$,C00"000 u'as rcccivcd fiom thc Car Loan

'rcco(lrrt .1riik;ilg tlic lctal Iicvol!itig Fund tbr )lousing Scheme find stand at Ksh. 137.5/-1'64-l

4

5

h

I Balance b./f FY 2021/2022 76,881,543

2 202V7022 20.151.t00

4.5 3 s.000Transfer fronr Car Loan



/nnunl Repotls and I|iuanciul Slulentenls
lror thc ),cflr erulcd Ju,tc 30th 2023

Rcviov of pcrfornrance

Incornc

'l'hc lirnd caured rcvcnucs arrounting to Kshs. .1,4t111,220 whiclt wcrc front the intcrest carncd on

lhc krarrs tlis[:urscd to Staff oi' Ksh 2,402,991. Iutcresl calncd on lhc tleposits utaintaiucd at

Natiorral llank of Kcrrya of Ksh I,085,229 and a fitrtlter lcvy rtf applicatiotr fees of Ksh 12,000

Bxpcnditures

Thc k)tal cxpcnditutcs during thc pcriod anrountccl to Kshs 2,402,991 This figulc fcplcscnts thc

arlnrinistrativc cosls.'['his is tlrc 3% ol'thc intcrcst chargcd on thc Moltgagc which the adnrinistrator

(National Ilank of Kcnya) dc<lucts ns pcr thc agcncy agrccnlcnts with thc conrnrission.

Futurc Outlook

Thc fund's nrain olrjcctivc is to build a robust anrl suslainahle fund hasc. We expcct to disbursc

rnorc loans due to lhc nrany numbcl of applicatiorrs (9) wc havc sincc rcceived. The fund looks

Iblward lo [Tcncfit lronr contintrctl strpport fronr thc patcnt cl)tity in thc rcalization of its mandatc.

Apprcciation

Itakc this oppoflunity to cxprcss rny sinccrc gratitudc and applcciatiorr to the adrninistrator',

stakcholdcrs, lnanagcrncnt, staffantl fcllow conrnriltcc nrcnrbcrs for (hcir continucd support which

rnade us achicve thesc rcsults.

I look I'orward lo your contirruc(l support in thc ycar 202312024

1o

I

!N\Signcrl

I'r'of. David Kuria

flhairnran of thc Board of l'rustccs

xxv
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6, Report of th0 Fund Managcr/Adntinlstt ator

'l'he l.'und adnlinistrabr subnrits lhcil rcpol't togclhcr witlt tltc uutuditctl linancial statcnlents lbr

lhe ycar ended June 30'r', 2023 which show tlrc state ol thc lrund affairs.

National Land Comtrrission Housing Schenre Fund is cstablished by and derives its authority artd

accountabiliry from The Public l'inance Managcment Act (No. l8 of2012) iu the fiuancial year

2018/2019. The l'und is wholly owned by National Laud Comrnission I'lousing Schcrnc l\rnd and

is domiciled in Kenya.

'l'he fund's objective is to facilitate state oificers and other public olficers within the Cotnntission

to benetit f'rom govenrment funded loans to ilccess Mortgagc loan f'acilrtics.

't'he CEO of National Land (,'ommission being the accountiug of]icer ol the Comntission was

appointed the signatory ol'the lirnd.

Value for Money

The National Land Commission ousing Scherno Funcls werc utilized in accoxlancc rvith the

provisions of Public Finance Manag,enrent Act 20 t2 and the pu4tosc for which they werc intended

for.

Progross Loan Disbursement

Durirrg the finanoial year 202212023 undcr rcview The National Land Conrtuission disbursed a

total of Ksh 24,800,000

Progress on Loan Recovery

During the financial year 202212023 untlcr review The Nalional Land flommissiotr recovered a

total of Ksh 3,607,017 as principal anrounts of loatl balances.

lncome

Thrr fuld canretl revenues amounting to Kshs. 3,48E,220 which were tiom the interest carned on

the loans disburserl to Stalf of Ksh 2,402,991, Ltterest carned on the deposits maintained at

National Bank ofKenya ofKsh 1,085,229 and a furlher lcvy ofapplication fees of Ksh 12,000

xxv I
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Expenditures

The total expenditures during the period amounted to Kshs 2,402,991. This figure represents the

administrative costs. This is the 3% of the interest charged on the Mortgage which the administrator

(National Bank ofKenya) deducts as per the agency agreements with the commission'

Principal Activlties

The principal activity ofthe Fund is to offer low interest loan facilities to staffto access Mortgage

loans.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Fund in accordance with Article

229 of the Constitution ofKenya and the Public Audit Act 2015

Jt[t(.n.a.",,
Secretarv/CEO

r
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7 Stetement of Performance agrinst Predetermined Objectlves

S

fi
on 81 (1) of the Public Finance Managemetrt Act, 2012 requires that, at the end of each

ial year, the Accounting officer for a national govemtnent entity shall prepare financial
ts in respect of the entity. When preparing financial statements of each entities in

with ttre standards and formats prescribed by the Public Sector A-ccoutrting Standards

B includes a statement of the county govemment entity's performance against predetermined

ectives.

e key development objectives,

a) The Fund's principal activity is to offer low interest loan facilities to members of the

commission to purchasc houses.

s oD attainment of Stategic development objectives

the financial year 202212023 The National Land Commission recovered
Kshs. 3,607,017 and disbursed a total of Kshs 24,800,000 l(

x.\v l
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8. Corporate Governance Statement

NLC day-to-day management is under the following key organs:

Nine (9) Commissioners comprising of the Chairman and Eight (8) Commissioners The

Commissioners were engaged on a full-time basis.

The Secretariat is headed by the Secretary/Chief Executive Oflicer supported by eleven (l l)
Directors and Entity coordination offices across the 47 counties. The Entity offices are headed by

the Entity coordinators.

In executing its mandate, the commission has the following oversight committees:

Audit and Risk Managemenl Committee
Finance and Administration Committee
Human Resource Committee
Credit Committee

I

2

3

4

Other Oversight Activities
NLC has r"gul"r liuiron *ith the Parliamentary Committee on land to ensure that issues of land

are properly addressed and legislated. Similarly, Parliamentary'Committee on Budgetary

Appropriations and the National Treasury has oversight on the Commission's budgetary

requirements, allocations and utilisation

Communication with all Stakeholders

The Commission is committed to ensuring that all its stakeholders aIe provided with full and

timely information about its programmes and performance. They are also given an opporhlnity to

give feedback.

.:

t
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9. Management f)iscussion and Anetrysis

The National Land Comn:ission StalflUortgage loan Scheme Fund was established in the financial

year 20',8i2019. The t)ndir:g wele obtaincd flom the parent entiti being the National Land

Conrnrission

20,151, t00

Transler fiom Car Loan 4 s15 000
-)

I 202212023

20.000,000

137,573,U3

During the year under review and amount ol Ksh 20,000,000 rvas transfened from the Car loan

account making the totai Revolving Fund for Mortgage Loan Scheme stand at Ksh 137,573,6113,

Review of performance

Incorne

The fund eamed revenues amounting to Kshs.3,448,220 which wcre tiom the intcrcst eamed on

thc loans disburscd to Staff of Ksh 2,402,991, Interest eamed on thc deposits maintained at

tl Notlonat Bankof Kenya of Ksh 1.0115,229 and a furthcr lgvyof application fces of Ksh 12,000
irJ+

Ixpenriitures

The total expendiiures during the pericd amounted to Kshs 2.1102,991. This tigure represents thc

adnrinistratir e cosis. This is the 3u'o ol'the interest clrarged on the N{ortgage * hicli tltc administrator

(lr-aticual Bank c I Kenya; deduc(s as per the agency agreelllents \ ith ihe ccnlmission.

76,887,543Balance B/F FY 2021/2022

2021!20?2

r6.000.000

5 Transler from Car Loan

ii.i\
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10. Environmental and Sustainability Reporting

a) Sustainability strategy and prolile

The top management especially the accounting officer should refer to sustainable

efforts, broad trends in political and macroeconomic affecting sustainability priorities,

reference to intemational best practices and key achievements and failure'

b) Environmental performance /climlte chNnge/ mitigation of natural disasters

The Nationat Land Commission is yet to establish an environmental policy to guide its

operations. Nevertheless, The Commission has adopted the use of ICT in order to

minimize on the use of PaPer work.

c) Employee welfare

The National Land commission has put in place the following policies to guide while

undertaking employee's welfare:

- Human Resources Manual PolicY

r
x\xr
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I l. Report of the Fund Administration Committee

Ihe Fund adminisEator submits their report together with thc rmauditcd financial statements for

lhe year ended June 3C'h,2023 which show the state ofthe Fund affairs.

National Land Commission Mortgage Loan Scheme Fund is established by and derives its

authority and accountability from The Public Finance Management Act (l'io, l8 of20l2) in the

financial year 2018/2019. The Fund is wholly owned by National Land Commission Mortgage

Loan Schcme Fun<i and is domiciled in Kenya.

The fund's objective is to facilitate state officers and other public officers within the Conxnission

to benefit from government funded loans to access Mortgage Loan facilities.

The CEO of National Land Commission being the accounting offtcer of the Cornmission was

appointed the administrator of the fund.

Value for Money

The National Land Commission's Mortgage Loan Scheme Funds were utilized in accordance with

the provisions of Public Finance Management Act 2012 and the purpose for which they were

intended for.

Progress Loan Disbursement

During the finirncial year 202212023 undcr review The National Land Commission disburscd a

total of Ksh 24,800,000

Progress on Loan recovery

During the financral yedr 712212023 undcr revjerv Thc National Land cor:rmission rccovercd a

total ofKsh 3,607,017 as principal amoutrts of loan balances.

Income

Thc fund eamed revcnues amounting to Kshs. 3..i8[i,22C wtich rtc're fi otn rhe intercst eartred on

rhe loans disburscd to Stalfoflish 2,402.991 lnterest earncd on the deposiis r-nrinlained at Nationai

Bank ofKenya of Ksh 1,J85.229 and a further levv ofapplicalion ti'es of KtL l2'090

I

$
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tr)xpcntliturcs

Thc total expcn<liturcs tlufing thc pcriotl amounted to Kshs. 2,402,99t . This figurc l epresents thc

arlnrinistlalivc cosls. This is thc 3% portion ol thc intercst clralgcd on thc mortgage whtch thc

adrninistrator (National Bank of Kcnya) dcducts as per thc agcncy aglcclncnts with thc

conunission.
Principal activities

Thc principal activity of thc Frurd is to offcr low intcrcsl loan facilitics to staff to access mortgage

loarrs.

Auditors

Thc Autlitor Gcncral is rcsponsiblc for thc statutory audit of thc l"und in accordancc with Articlc

229 of the Constitution of Kcnya and lhc Public Atrdit Act 2015,

By Oldc of thc altl

Chair of thc Board/Fund Adntinistration Contnlittcc

T
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Nutionol Luutl Counissittu Ilonsing Schcne fund
Annuul Reporls and Financial Statell,renls
l'or the year enle.l June Jqth 202J

1 2, Stalcment of Managonrcnt's llcsponsibilitics

Scction 84 (l) ol thc l'ublic Finance Man gdnlent Act,2012 rc(lr,riros rhat, tt the end ol cach

linancial year, thc Athninistrator ol a lrund cstablishcd by rn Act of parliament (lrIM Acr 2912/

shall prepare financial staternents fol the l\rud in accordaucc with thc standards aud fbnnats

prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board.

'llrc Admintstrator of tltc Funtl is rcsponsiblc fur thc prcparatirn) and presenlation of the l:und's

financial statetncuts, which give a truc and lirir vicrv of thc stirtc ofalf:rirs ofthe l'und for and as at

thc end ol thc financial year cnded on Junc 30, 2023. 'l'his responsibility inclutles: (i)mairitaining

adequa(e linancial rnanagemcnl arran8enlcnts und cnsuring that lhese con(lnuq to bc clicctivc

throughout the rcporting period, (ii) lr)aiutaining propcr accounting, recolds, which tlisclose with

reasottable accurilcy at any tinle the financial positiol) of the fund, (iii)Dcsigniug, implerncnting and

nraintaining intemal controls lclcvartt to the preparatiur and lhir preseutation of the financial

statemeltts, and eusuring that they are lree lrulu rnaterial rnisstatclucnts, whethcr duc to crror or

liautl, (iv)Safeguarthng the asscts ol'tllc liuldi (v)Selccting and applying appropriate accoullting

pt.rlicres, and (vi)Making aocountilrg estinlates tha[ nre reasonable il the circumstanccs.

The Adrninistrator ofthc Fuud acccpts lcsponsibility for thc t.und's flnancial statclnents, which have

becn prcpared using apprt.rplitrte accountiug policics supponcd by reasorrable and pnrdcnt

judgenrents and ostimates, in conforrlity with Intcrnational Publio Seotor Accounting Standarrls

(ll'SAS), and in the manncr requirctl by the I'FM Act, 20 t2 Thc Adnlinistlator of the !'uud is ol'the

opinion that thc l.'und's financial statoments givc a true aDd l'air vrcw ol'the statc ol'Fund's

transactions during the linancial year endcd June 30,2023, arxl ol the l"und's I'uraucial position as

at that date.

The Atln:inistrator f'urther conlirnt the cornpletcncss of the accouutiug records rlrail)t0incd lbr the

Fuud, which have bccn lclicd uporr irr thc prcparation ofthe Funtt's finaucial statcrncnts as wcll as

the adcqrracy ofthc systems ofintcural fitrancial control.

In preparing the linancial stater)lenls, thc Adnlir)rstrator ol the Fund ltas asscssctl the I"und's ability

to contiDue as a going concem and disclosctl, as applicable, lnatters relating to lhc use of going

concenr basis of preparation ol the linanr:ial statcrncnts.

xxxtv



Noional Land Cotttutlsslon Houslag Schene lund
Anrtual RepoNs aad Flnaucial Sta,euents
For the year endcd June i0th 2023

Nothing has come to the attention of the Administrator to indicate that the Fund will not remain a

going concem for at least the next twclve months from the date of this statcmettt'

Approval of the llnanclsl ststemcnts

The Fund's financial statements were approved by thc Board on

on its behalf by:

2023 and signed

.htuh

Kabale Tachc Arero

Sccretery /CEO

Prof. David Kurls

Chalrperron of the Fund.

t
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDTTOR.GENERAL

E n hanc i ng A c c ounl abi I ity

HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovla Street
P.o. Box 3oo84-o01oo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON NATIONAL LAND COMMISSION
HOUSING SCHEME FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023 - NATIONAL
LAND COMMISSION

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
arc tairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure that the
Government achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the
intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of lhe Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Ac1,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of National Land Commission
Housing Scheme Fund set out on pages 1 lo 25, which comprise of the statement of

Report of the Auditor-Cenerol on Nationql Lqnd Commission Housing Scheme Fund for the year ended
0 June, 2023 - National Land Commission



financial position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance,
statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison
of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions
of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I

have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the National Land Commission Housing Scheme Fund as at 30 June, 2023,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with
the Public Finance Management Acl,2012 and the Public Finance Management (National
Land Commission Housing Scheme Fund) Regulations, 2016.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the National Land Commission Housing
Scheme Fund Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have
fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with
other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actual on comparable basis of Kshs.3,500,220 and Kshs.3,500,220 respectively, or
100% budget realization. Further, the Fund spent an amount of Kshs.2,402,991 against
an approved budget of Kshs.2,402,991 or 100% budget performance. However,
Management did not provide for audit the approved budget for the Fund. As a result, it
was not possible to determine whether there was an initial budget or whether
Management drew the'budget' after realization and performance of its activities.

ln the circumstances, the performance of the Fund against the budget could not be
confirmed.

My opinion is however not modified in respect of the above matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Report of lhe Auditor-General on Nalional Land Commission Housing Scheme Fund lor the year ended
30 June. 2023 - National Land Commission
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Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters - Unreconciled Long Outstanding Receivables from
Exchange Transactions

ln the audit report of the previous year, the statement of financial position reflected
long{erm receivables from exchange transactions balance of Kshs.48,993,645 as was
disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements. However, the loan statements from the
bank reflected a total amount of Kshs.41,875,799 resulting to an unexplained variance of
Kshs.7,117,846 and further, no ageing analysis was provided contrary to the requirement
of the reporting template.

Although Management has indicated that the balances have been reconciled, the Public
Account Committee (PAC) of the National Assembly's report has not been issued on the
deliberation and resolution thereof.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Non-Compliance with an Addendum to the Agreement with the Fund Administrator

Review of mortgage records provided for audit revealed that a local Bank which is the
appointed Fund Manager/Administrator has been charging the Fund 5% as administration
fees since the Addendum to the Fund administration agreement was signed on
05 September, 2018. The Addendum to the agreement indicated that the administrative
fee charged by the Bank was to increase from 3% to 5% of the mortgage repayments for
the year with the Bank administration fee being 3% and 2olo maintained to grow the fund.
However, over the years, the Bank has not maintained the 2% growth to the Fund as
agreed. This is contrary to the Addendum to the agreement (Memorandum of
Understanding) dated 5 September, 2018 which amended clause 8 of the original
agreement dated 28 F ebruary, 2017.

Management has explained that the Commission contacted the Fund/Administrator and
the Bank has agreed to review the relevant data with a view to establish the number of
mortgage repayments affected by the 2o/o refund (required to grow the Fund) as per the
Addendum to the agreement.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

Report of the Audilor-Generol on Nqlional Lqnd Commissbn Housing Scheme Fund for the year ended
30 June, 2023 - Narionql Lqnd ('ommission
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The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that lplan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Report of the Auditor-Cencral on National Land Commission Housing Scheme Fund for the year ended
30 Junc, 2023 - National LanJ Commissi,n
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) oI the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of lhe Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7( 1 )(a) of the Public Aud it Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projectionsof any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

eport of the Auditor-General on Nationql Lqnd Commission Housing Scheme Fund /or the year eruled
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a ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
ability to sustain its services. lf lconclude that a material uncertainty exists, lam
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue
to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA BS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

08 January, 2024

Report of the Auditor-General on National Land Commission Housing Scheme Fund .for lhe year ended
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innual Rcports unl I;inancid Slalcnenls
?itt' thc l,sov sn nd Junc 3Olh 202-l

14. Statcrucnt of Finnncial Pcrfornrancc for the ycar cnded 30th June 2023.

Ilcvenuc fronr cxchangc t ransaclions

Inlcrcst incortrc
Othcl incorne 2 12.000 9,000
'fotal revenue 3,500,220 575,0 t 7

Expenses

,'

lJsc of(ioods and Scrviccs (7 r e,ee3)
'Iotal cxpenscs (2,402,991) (7 te,ee3)

_Q.t.p_lt,r tur thc leriod 1,097,229 1,855,024

Thc rrotcs sct out on lragcs l8 to 2l lornr an inlegrnl part of'thcsc l;inancial Statenrents

l (2,402,9e1\

'l hc lirntl firnnciirl stirrcnlcnls wcrc appr'ovc(l (,n'J';l)l / J 1'l , 2023 an<l .ign",t t y, .. S.,

tl,r*
Kabalc 'l'achc Arcro

Sccrctary /Cl)O

CPA llcrnard Kibct Chcrutlch

l'und Acccountanl

ICPAK l\{/l.,lo 581fi

Prof. David Kurla

Chairpcrson of thc Fund

2,s66,0t7
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Ntoiortul l,un.l (.inrutission llousittg stlrcnr lfund
,ln uul Reports un l:inuncirl 'Tlultut'trts
l'br thc 1'ttr en e Junt .10th 2022

lS, Stntcnlcnl of l'inant'ial Position as rt( .101h Jttne 2023

ssets

Curront ssscts
(lash and cush equivalents

Non-currcnt Assots

71,462,017 55.557,tt61

70,Ir,16,7Ilt 48,993,645

l4 r ,648,?35 104,s5 r,500

I 4

Rcccivahles lirrnr cxchangc tliuls.rctiot)s

'l'olal assets

l,labllltics
'I'otal llabililies
Nct asscts

Mortgage l{ovolv ing ! urrd

Acctrnrulatctl Surpltrs

'Lutat Net lsseis
'l'ot l N.:t Asscts and l,iabilitios

5

6 117,57:1,61]

4,075,092

l4l,648J.ls
t4l,641r,735

l0 I ,571.64.r

2.977,863

11)4,551,506

104,551,506

l hc accoulting policics and cxplarrtrlory no(cs scl oul l'rom pagc It( to 2 I o1 th(:sc linilnciilI stillcllrctlts

tirrrlI rr intcglal pflrl ol thc Iiniltlciill sta(cntctlts.

lhc lirnrl linalcial slllcrr)crts rvctc upplovctl u,, . "' 
" 

t 2{}21lrltl rtgtrctl by

htr*

\:,-.k

Kabalc 'l'ache Arero

Sccrcttry /CEo

CPA llcrnlrtl Kibcl (lhcrrtl iclt

lrtlnd Accountnllt

I(ll'AI( ttUN0 5tll6

l'rol. l)rvid Kut ia

(- halrprrsou of tht l'un(l

')
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lnttual RepoNs and Finunck Statcments
F'or lhc year cnded Ju,,e 3Olh 2023

16. Statcnrcnt ofChanges in Net Asscts for the ycar ended .10th Junc 2023

As at I July 2021

Surplus fol lhc pcliod

Funds rcccivcd during the ycar

Transfer - Funds lrorn Car Account

As at 30 Junc 2022

Ralance as at t July 2022 t 0l,573,643

Surplus for thc pcliod
'l'ransfer liont Car loan accorml 20,000,000

[.\rnds rcccivcd during thc ycat l(r,000,000

Inlercst c pitalize(l

As at 30 Junc 2023 r 37.573.643

2,977,863 104,551,506

t,097,229 1.872,9(r0

20.000,000

t6,000,000

4,075,092 r41.648.735

|,,rr* NL..
Kahalc 'I'achc Arcro

Sccrctary /CEo

CPA Bcrnard Kibct Chcnrtich

Fund Acccountant

ICPAK M/No 5lll6

I'rof. Davld Kuria

Chairpcrson of lhc l'urd

2,977,863

t,t22,839

r,855,024

78,0 r0,382

20,l5l,100

t,855,024

4,535,000

104,551,506

76,887,543

20,1 5 1, t00

4,5 35,000

t 0l,573,643

t
,l
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Nutionul Lan ('olzlttrissiotr Ilousing St hLmt litutl
A nuul Raporls und h'inurciul St.ttc,ncrtls
l,-or lhe year ended June J0lh 2023

t 17, Statcnrcnt ofCIsh l'lorvs for the ycar entled 30lh June 2023

Clsh fl9r1s fi'om operatirg sctivities
lliccipls
l ercsl lnconle rccctvctl
iliir"ilu.un,.
'l-(ltal ttcceipts

l'ay lllc|lts
Usc ol Coods and Sclvtccs
'fotal I'aynrcnts

N0t crsh llorvs ltorn opcrlting activitics

,!11! !t9ls tiol1 irtvcsting activitics
l)roccetls florn loan principal rspaynrcnts

Loun dist,urscnrerrts paitl tlut

Not cnsh florvs uscd in invcs(ing aclivitics
iiush llorvs froll fi n a ucirrg,ac tiv it its
I'rocceds liorn rcvolvirtg liuxl rcccipts

l{cccipls inlo thu nlor(tsage rcvolvirrg l'tttttl

Nct cash llorvs uscd in tinancing nctivitics
Nlt il:r qasel({ccrcasc) in !:tlh lnd cttslt c'tlttiv:tlcrls
Cash antl cash cquivalents {t I Jtlly

I

2

.r,48t{,22-0

12,000

-1,500,220

),402,e\) I

2,402,991

1,091,229

l,(,()7,01 7

(24,1r00,000)

(2 1, r e2,983))

16,000,000

20,000,000

36,00010,0_0-

15,904,246

2,566,017

9,000

2,575,O1?

/ lr,99l
719,99f

I,855,024

I ,05.1,3 l6
(25,920,000 )

(24,866,684)

20,15 t ,100
4,5.15,000

24,6116,100

1,674,44tJ

53,rJ83_421

55,557,861

t0

't

tt

9

55,557,rJ61

Cash and cash cquivilcnts at 30 Junc 71,462,017

'lhc rrccounting policies urrtl cxplanirtoty lotcs sct out liurrr plgc |8 to 2I ol tlrcss littatlcial slittctttcttts

lOrr)r ilu intcgrll part of lhc tinitDciill slatcrl)cnls.

4
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National Land Commission Housin
n tatemerrls

For the year eaded June 3hh 2023

18. Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual amounts for the year ended 30th June 2023

tRevenue
Transfers lrom other Parcnr Midstrvi SC/SAGA

Interest income

; Other income

Total Revenue

Expenses

Use ofgoods and services

Su lus for the

Kabale Tache Arero

Secretary- /CEO

CPA Bernard Kibet Cherutich

Fund Acccountant

ICPAK M/tio 5816

3,488,200

12,000 12,000

0o/o

100% 
I

100%

100%

W*, H

12,000

Prof, Devid Kuria

Chairperson of the Fund

)

A b C{a+b) 
|

d e=(c-d) I F=67c

3,488,200

3,s00r20 3,500,220

3,488,200

3,500,220 100%

2,402,99t | 2,102,991 2,402.991
Expenditure 2,402,991 2,402,991 2,402,99t 100%

1,097,229 1,097,229 1,097229 1000h



II Ntlional Land Contttission Housing Schena l ntl
Aunuul Reporls an h'inanciul Slulantenls
h'or the year ende lnne 30th 2023

19, Notes to Financlal Strlemcnt

A. Gcnr:ral lnformntlon

National Land Colnnrission tlousing Schcrnc Fund is establislrcd by and dcrivcs its

authority and accountability from Thc Public Finaucc Managemcnt Act (No. l8 of2012)

in thc tinansial year' 201tl/20 19. 'Ihe Fund is wholly ownctl [:y National Lantl

Comnrission I lousing Scherne l"und and is donricilcd in Kcnya.

B. Statement of Conrpliance and Basls of Preparation

The financial statements havc been prcpared on a historical cost basis cxcept for the

mcasurcnlen( at rc-vulued arnounls of ccrtuin iterns of propsrty, plant, and cquipment,

rntrrketabk: seourities and tlnancial instruments at thir valuc, impairod ussets a( their

estirnated recovcrablc atnounts and actuarially tlctcrmined liabilities at thcil prescnt

value. Thc prcparation of tinancial statcrncnts in conformity wilh lnternational Public

Sector Accountirrg Standards (tl'SAS) allows the uso of cslitrtates and assumptions ll

also requircs nlanagemetrt to exercise judgement in lhc procc.-s of applying the Fund's

accounting policies.'l'he areas ittvolvittg a higher dcgrec ol'judgrncnt or colnplexity, or

where assunrptions antl estinrates are signilicaut to the financial statclllcnts, are disclosetl

in the Notes

The financial statcmenls hnvc becn prcparcd antl prcscnted in Kenya Shillings, which is

the functional and rcporting cunency of thc Fund.

The financial staterncnts have bccn prcpared in accordancc with thc PF'M Act, antl

lntelnational Pttblic Scctor Accountirtg Standards ([PSAS). Thc accourlting polir:ies

adopted have bcen consistently applied to all the years ptescntcd.

t
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\, tNadonol Larul Commixloa Housing Schcme fund
Annual Rqot7s and Financial Stadcz'cnts
For the yar cadcd tunc ihh 2023

C, Adopdon OfNew and Revlred Strnderds

r'. New rnd rmended rtrndrrd! rnd lDt€rpretltions in lssue elfective ln the yeer

endcd 30 June 2023

IPSASB defered the application darc of standards from l't January 2022 owing to Covid 19.

This was done to provide entities with time to effectively apply the standards. The deferral was

set for ln Ianuary 2023.

i

t

l

!
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National Land Commission Housing Sc!;eme furd
,4nnuul Reports and Financial S;ataments
Fcr the year ended iung 31th 2C23

li .Nevr and amended standards and intcrpretations in issue but not yet effective in the

vcar ended 30th Junc 2C23.

IPSAS 4I:

Financial

lnslruments

iPSA-S J2:

Applicable: t't January 2023:

Thc objcctive of IPSAS 4l !s to cstablish principles for the financial

reportmg of financial assets anci !iabrlities that \.\'ill present relcvant and

usehrl inforniatiolr to users of financial slatemenls for thei; assessment of

the amounts, timing and uncertainty of the Fund's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial staternents with more useful

iuformation than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a singlc classification and measurement model tor

financial assets that considers thc characteristics of the asset's

cash flows and the objective for whiclr the asset is held:

. Applying a single foruard-looking expected credit loss model

thai is applicable to all financial instrutuents subjcct to impairment

testingt and

. Applying an improvcd hcdgc accotrnting modcl that broadens

the hedging alrangc;ncnts itr scop,e of thc guidance. The nrodel

dcrclops a stro:lg link bet'ruccn a Funi's risk managemcnt

slrategies and the accountiilg trcatn;ent for instr:lnlenls held as

J)rrt of th!' risk manag'3lilent stntcgy.

Sociirl

,r.ppiicab;e: i'r "lanuarv 2.123

1n,: t,'o;cclrr -' r:i' thts Sll,'ttl'trd i: io intpr:re til': lt'icr rncc'. [lithlul

r,,,lr!.sc.ntirl i\'.Meris and ,.'ot.uparahiiitl c i the i l-ort.tlation thal a reporting

!'r-u:,1 .,rlr ii,:s rn its !ltlrnr-'i'il slalcttlci)ii :btlitt :;t:r'i::l bcntlits. Th'r

B se



National Land Commission Housing Scheme fund
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30th 2023

Othcr

improvcments

to lPS,{S

li)0ii)

.lpplicahle I't Januury 2023

o 1PS.]S )) Disclosure of Financial lnJitrnurion aboul lhc General

Orn L'rn nettl St irtr,

.\:ncndrnsrtts to ;clel lo the latcst Systenr of )'ational Accoun(s (SNA

) /1,.t. 15 .19 Enlilrt.t *: Ben/it.s

\oii'Jelct-'s rlla ',-':'rr aomposite social securilv br'nefits as tt is no lonr:er

i .1c tlncd rn IPSA-i.

' lPS,\5 29: ljln;rcial instruments: Recogllition and lleasurement

Srandard nD i.n{cr included tn the l0ll IPS.\S handbook as it is norv

superscdcJ ir;- iPS.\5 + I which rs apphcable liorn l" January 20lJ

general-purposc fi nancial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Fund;

(b) Thc key t-eatures ofthe operation ofthose social benelit schemes; and

(c) The impact ol such social benefits provided on the Fund's financial

performance, financial position and cash flows.

iil statements arri{information provided should help users of the financ

Applicable: lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which wire inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 4 [ was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omifted when

IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guarantee contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying financial

instrumcnts on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issucd.

Amendments

to Other

IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 4I ,

Financial

lnstruments

9



fi'ational I-and Commi:;sion trf ousittg Schente fund
Annu-al Reports and Financial -lrutements
For :e year ended June 30th 2023

IPSAS 43 .4pplicohie I't ,.lanuary 2025

The standard sets out the principlcs for thc recognition, mcasuremcnt.

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is tc ensure that

lessees and lessors provide relevant inlbrmation in a manner that

faithfully iepresents those transactions. This information gives a hasis for

users of financial statements to assess the effcct that leases have on the

financial position, financial performance and cash florvs ofthe Fund.

The nerv standard requires entities to recognise, measurc and present

information on right ofuse assets and lease [iabilities.

.4pplicablc 1" January 2025

The Standard rcquires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held lor sale to be measured

at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the

depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets tl'lat nreet the criteria to be classihed as held for sale to be presented

separatcly in the statement of financial position and the results of

discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement of

financial performance.

Early adoption of standards

Tht' Fund did not early - adof,t an v nr'rv or amcntlcd standartls in thc ycar 202 1 , 22

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations



n'ational Land Commission Housing Scheme fund
Annual Reports and Financial Stalements
For the year ended June 30h 2023

D Signifi cant Accounting Policies

Revenue recognition

Revenue from non-exchange trensactions

Transfers from other government entities

Rel.enues from nori-exchange transactions with other goverllment entities are measured at

fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and

properry) ifthe transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits

or service potential related to the asset will flow to the Fund and can be measured reliably.

a

i)

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Interest income

lnterest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounS

estimated furure cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's

net carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine

interest income for each period.

b. Budget information

The originat budg et for FY 202212023 was approved on July l, 2022. Subsequent revisions

or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with specific

approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added to rhe

original budget by the Fund upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude

thc final budget.

r\ccordingly, the Fund recorded additional appropriations ol Kshs. l6'000,000 for the FY

22,'23 budget following the goverrtiug body's approval.

Tirc'Fund's budget is preparetl on a different basis tionr the rclual incotne antl expendtture

tlisciosed in the financial statettrents. The financial statenlents are prcpared on accrual basis

Lrsrllg a classihcation baSeti oo the n.riurc oI Cxpcltscs ili ih,r statenic:li oi financial

pcrfi;r:.nance, rvhereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the linancial

sliltctltcnts \\,ere rccast frOnr the aCcrual basts to the caj;1 basis and rc":lassified by

pr.:lcnlxtion to bc on the same basis as the approved budgct. A comparison of budget and

leruill .rmounts, prcparcd on a comparable basis to thc apprcr":li budgct, is thcn prescnted

+I
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National Land Commission Housing Scheme fund
Annunl Reports and Financial Statements
For the j'ear ended June 30th 2023

SIgnificant Accounting Policies continucd

the statement of comparison of budgct and actual amounts. In addition to the Elasis difference,

adjustments to amounts in the financial statcments are also made for drflerenccs in the formats

a.rrd classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and the

approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement

ofcomparison ofbudget and actual amounts as per the statement offinancial oerformance

has been presented under section l7 and page 5 ofthese financial statements.

c. Property, plant, and equipment (FPE)

AII property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accurnulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Cost includes cxpenditure that is directly attributable to thc acquisition of

the items. When signifrcant parts ofproperty, plant and equipment are rcquired to be replaced

at intervals, the Fund recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific usefirl lives and

depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is

rccognized in the carr,ving amount of the plant and equipment as a replaccment if the

recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are lecognized in

surplus or deficit as incuned. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil

or nominal consideration thc asset is initially measured at its fair value.

C. Intangible assets

Intaugibie assets acquired separately are inrtially recognized at cosi. 'ih,.' cost of intangible

',lsscts acquircd in a non-exchangc transaction is thcir fair valuc at the ciatr.' ol'thc exchange.

Following:nitial recognition. intangible asscts are carried at cost less an)' accumulated

a!':roltization and accumulatcd ilipaimrcnt losses. Intcrnally gellcratcd inlengible asscts,

excluding capitalized development costs. are not capitalized and excen,.liturc is reflected in

suq',lus or dellcit in the pcriod in which the expenditure is incLrn'eti. 'll:e useliil life o[ the

rnranqiblc asscts is assc'ssed as cilh.'r fi:tits or irrdefinite.



National Land Commission Housing Scheme fund
Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 3hh 2023

Signilicant Accounting Policies continued

e. Financialinstruments

l)Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments; Recognition and

Measurcment are classificd as financial assets at fair valtle through surplus or deficit, loans

and receivablcs, held-to-marurity investmcnts. or available-for-sale financial assets, as

appropriate. The Fund determines the classiijcation of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial

assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less

impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium

on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part ofthe effective interest rate. Losses

arising from impairment are recognized in the surplus or deficit.

Held-lo-ntatutity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities

are classified as held to maturity when the Fund has the positivc intention and ability to

hold it to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are measured

at amortized cost using the etTective interest melhod, with less impairment. Amortized cost

is calculated by taking into account any discount or prcnlium on acquisition and fees or

costs tltat arc an integral part ol thc' ritectrr,,-, :nterest r:11,-' l'lte iosses arising from

impairment are recognized in surplus..,r dcficit.

Impairment of financiul usseis

Thc Fund assesscs at crch rcportlng dltc rvhcthcr thcr: ts obl':c1tVc cvldcnco that a tinancial

asset or I Fund of tlnancial ussets rs lltlpaircd. Nllnagetrcnt thcn tbiiorvs the procedurc

requrretl by Regularion l.l5 o1'thc PF\t .\ct. ,\ tiurncial lsset of lhc Ftrnd is deemed to be

irnpaircd i1, and only ll. ther(. 1s,tb1cct. I:,i.l.-":cc..ri'irnl;a,,i:i,:i,t.tslttcsLtllofoneorrlorc

t



Nytional Land Commission llousing Scheme fund
Ainual Reports and Fi anci,,l Statefirents
F{r the year endetl ,iurre 30th 2023

Significant Accounting Folicies continued

Jvents that has occurred after the initial recognition ofthe asset (an incurred 'loss event') and

t{at loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows ofthe Fund that can be reliably

tti,rot"d. Evidence of impairment may include the following indicators:

. The debtors ofthe Fund are experiencing signihcant financiai difhculty

o Default or delinquency in interest or principal palments

. The probability that debtors will entcr bankruptcy or other financial reorganization

o Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estirnated ftlture cash flows (e.g.

changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

2) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measatemeflt

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair

value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Fund

determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recoglized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

bonowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Continued)

f. Contlngentliabilities

The Fund does not recognize,a contingent liability but discloses details ofany contingencies

in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources

eniboCying economic benefits or service potential is relnote.

g. Contingent assets

The Fund does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset

whosc existcnce is contingent on the occurrenae or non-occrrrrence ofone or morc uncertain

future events not whotly within the contrcl of the Fund in thc nctes to the financial

starenrc:1is. Contingent ilssets ar!' assr'Jsed colitiluaily to clliure tl',at deVelopments are

appropriately reflccted in the financial staiemcltts. lf rt has beccme ', i:tually certain that an

inflow of economic benefils or service potentiai r"ill a:ise and tlte asset's value can be

rncasured reiiably. the asset and the relaLcd re',:lttlc are reccgnlz'-'d in the financial

stJtements of the period in which the .han3r occurs.

i)
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National Land Commission Housing Scheme fund
Annual Reports and Finqncial Statements
For the year ended June 30th 2023

Significant Accounting Policies continued

h. Nature and purpose of reserves

The Fund creates and maintains reserves in terms ofspecific requirements. (Fund to state

the resen'es mainlaine.l and appropriate policies adopted)

i. Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Fund recognizes the eltects ofchanges in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects

of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is

impractical.

j, Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate ofexchange

on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtorgdenominated in foreigl currency

are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange

rate on that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement ofcreditors, or fiom the

reporting of creditors at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded

during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

k. Related parties

The Fund regards a related party as a person or entity with the ability to exert control

individually or jointty, or to exercise significant influence over the Fund, or vice l'ersa.

Members of key nranagement are regarded as related parties and comprise the Directors/

Trustcc. the Fund ilanauers. and Fund Accountant.

l. Cash ;ad cash eq:ivaicnts

C3sh and cash cquivalents cotnprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-ternl deposlts on

call. antl highly iior,iti iniestmerrts with an original maturity of three nrontlts or less, which

are rr'adily couvcrtib[' to kttort'n amounts ofcash and arc subject to:nsignrticant risk ol

changcs in valuc. Bank account balances include amounts held at varioLts cotrtrtetcial banks

at the en,-l of the linancial ycar.

T
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A ona! Land Corfimission Housing Scheme lund
A nual Reports and Financial Stolements

r the year ended lune 30th 2023

s iticant Accounting Policies continued

. Comprrative {igures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigu.-ed to confcrm to the required changes in presentation.

. Events alter the reporting period

There were no material adjusting and non-adusting events after the reporting period.

o Ultimate and Holding Fund

The Fund is established under Section 24 (4) PFM Act under the National Land

Commission. Its ultimate parent is the Govemment of Kodya.

p. Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs.).

(-J

{
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Signifi cant Accounting Policies continued

E Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertaint-v

The preparation of the Fund's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of revenues. expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent

liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these

assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to

the carrying amount ofthe asset or liabitity affected in future periods.

a) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material

a justment to the carrying amounts ofassets and tiabilities within the next financial year,

are described below. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future

developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the

control ofthe Fund. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. (See

IPSAS 1.140.)

b) Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed usirtg the following indicators

(o inform potential future use and value from disposal:

i) Thc condition ofthc assct is based on thc asst-ssmcnt of c'rpcrts u:rploycd b1'

the F';nr.l

ii) The nature of thc asset, irs susceptibilitv rnd adaptabilrty to charlges in

technology and processes

iii) The nature ofthe processes in rrhich the asset is depioyed

iv) Availability of l'urtding to replace thc asset

r ) Chan-gcs in the market tn relation to tlle asset

.
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Annua! Reports ond Financial Slatenents
Far lhe;car ended June 30th 2C23

r*otes to Financial Statement

Ioterest income

Inlerest income from Mortgage loans

Interest irlcome on bank deposits

Tota! interest income

2. Otlrer income

Application fees

Totai other income

2,442,991 I ,199,989

1,035,229 t,366,029

3,488,228 2,566,017

t 2,000

3. Use of Goods and Sen'ices

4. Cash and cash equivalents

N,lorigage loan-Nationai Bank of Kenya lJc
0l :880329S0000

| 'i ctai ca:h a3J cash e'.1'-rii lkrnts 7i,-1t5i.017i 55.557,tt61

?t -ll.) 017 | 5 5.s s7.861

:..t';i.'1.;ri : r.l"i: {r

.t

,:!:ri r

(1,,

9.00012.000

9,000

Loan processing costs

2,4C2,991 719,993

719.9932.402,991
r\dministration costs

Total
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5, Receivables from exchange trrnsactions

6. Revolving Fund

Balance at end of the period

7. Proceeds from loan principal repavnlents

' i'r'incrpal loan rcpaynrcnts

l oiai rettil'ables ii-r,l oia:14;i c traii"aai:oi,:;

3,606,0 t 7 r,053,3 r6

3,606,017 1.053,316

.*.t

Description 2022t2023 202U2022

KShs KShs

Current receivables

Non-Current receivrrbles

Long tcnr loan repay'rnents duc 70,186,7 r8 48.993.645

Long term loan repaFlents due -Car Loans

Total Non- current receivables 70,186,718 48,993,645

Total receivables from exchange transactions 70,186,71E 4E,993,645

Ageing analysis (receivable from
exchange transactions

2022t2023 202il2021

For next twelve months 7 ,021,1t6 100% 4 75l 844 t00%

Total 7,021,116 looo/" 4,751,U4 1000h

76,887,54310t,573,643Balance at beginnlng of the period
16,000,000 20,151,100Transfer From NLC

4,535,00020,000,000Transfer of Funds tiom car loan account
101.,573,643137,573,643



,\Jationa! Land Commissiort I!ausing Schene fund
Annual Reports and Fincnc!a! Stalenents
For the yetr e ded J t:2 3lth 2023

I{otcs to tie Fina:rc;al Statements (continued)

B. Loan disbursements Paid out

Violct Okumu

Edmcnd Gichuru l(iplagat

Ben Bett Tuwai

Total receivabies fi'om exchan e transactions

9. Proceeds from Revolving fund receipts

llotes (o the Financial Statements (continued)

i0. N,:t cash ilow frorn operating ectivities

Surplus/ (defitit) for the ] eai before tax 3,58G,220 2,575.017

I ,tij usted lcr:

11.
}} s!;rcirts

I In.:isasc ln r'.ccilablcs 2..101_q!) I 71q q9l 
I

7 00000Marion Mutai

Nlary Nguncio 14,00c, 000 i

3.600,000

I I,070,000

t4,850.000

24.800,000 25,920,000

5.037,775

l5,l13.325
Transfer- FT2 l260NRCY l, NLC. REC/0000026724

Transt'er- FT 2127 23X9LJ. l.lLC .,'REC/0000026796

r 6,000,000

20.000,000

36,000,000 20,151,100Net cash flcrv from opcrating activities

ft,',.r. asc in pavi bies

l,t.rjl,Z29r 1.3i5.014
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Notes to the Financlal Ststements (continued)

11. Accumulated Surplus

12, Detailed analysis of.the cash and cash equivalents in banks approved by National

Treasury in line with Sectlon 28 of the PFM Act are as follows:

Current Account
77.162.01 ,1 s5,55 7,861

Sub- Total 71.162.J 17 5i,5 5 7,8

Othcrs(SpPCirl

Cash On Hand

Sub- Total

Gt

tl

78,010,382I ,122,839
76,887,543

Belance as at 1 July 2021

1,855,024

1.855,024
Surplus for the period

20,15 I,100
20,l5l,l00

Funds received during the year

4,s3s,000

4,535,000
Transfer - Funds from Car
Account

104,551,5062,917,E63101,573,643Balance as at 30 June 2022

104,551,s062,917,863101,s73,643
Balance as at I July 2022

1,097,229t,097,229
Surplus for the period

20,000,000

20,000,000
Funds received during the year

16,000,000

16,000,000
Transfer - Funds from Car
Account

141,648,7354,075,0921 7,573,643Balance as at 30 June 2023

Housing Fund

0128803:980000National Bank of Kenya

Grand Totel " l.{52,1, 55,557,86r i
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20. Annexes

Annex ii Progrcss on Follcw up of Prior Year Auditcr's Reco:nn:endations
'lhe follo,ving is the sur::mary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments

that were provided to the auditor.

1878.
Unreconciled
Long-Term
Receivab!es
from Exchange
Transactions

The statement
of financial
position reflects
long-term
receivables
from exchange
transactions
balance of
Kshs.
48,993,645 as

disclosed in
i{ote 5 to the
financial
statelnents.
However, the
loan statements
irom the bank
r eflects a total
amount of
Kshs.
-+ 1.875.799
resuiting to an

.incxplaineC
i'ariance of
Kshs.
;,1 l7.ll"i6.

It is true there
are variances
of the long
term
receivables. rvc

have sincc
provided and

explaincd the
variance with
balances of
cach
beneficiary tied
to the bank
balances ol the
individual
benetlciaries to

elinrinate the
varianc:s.

Bemard
Kibct

Cherutrch -
DFCP

[iu ing fi.;rri;rd
u e lraye
seoarateC thc
nc.t', twclvc
nronths
r':ccir ablcs
liorn long tcrnr
rcceivahies as

rccluircu l,l 'hc

Reso crl l 06-2013

&
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Further, the
current amount
receivable in
the next twelve
( t 2) months
was not
separated from
the long-term
receivables
tiom exchange
transactions
balance of
Kshs.
48,993,645
contrary to the
requirement of
the reporting
template.
In the
circumstances.
the accuracy
and fair
presentation of
the long-term
rcceivables
from exchangc
transzrctions
\alancc ol

i rrht.
i +s,qql.o+s

could not bc

]confirmed.

reportrng
template.

,b

t
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1879. Failure
by the Steering
Committee to
[Iold Requisite
Meetings

least four t.ntes

It is tme the
steering
committee held
three r.reetings
during the year

under revierv.
going l-orward
u'e havc placeC

mechanisms in
place to ensure
ccmpliancc
with regulation
65 i.e.
quarterly
meetings to
cnsure full
compliance
-wrth the
requisite
rireetings
rrumbcr
aunually.
ALtachcd is thc
schedules ol'
nreerings hei(i
in the -u-car

2021,'201.r r,,
dcmonstratc
conrpliance.

in ir year and
thc period
b,;trt'geil one
rneeting ol thc
Con:n:ittc: and
thc ncxt shall

I 
not c\cead lcur
(r l l(rl,:i.:).

Perlsal of the
Steerirg
Ccmmittee
meetings
minutes
revealed that
during the year
under review,
the Committee
held three (3)
meetings. This
was contrary to
Regulatiou 6(5)
of the National
Land
Commission
Housing
Scireure Fun.l
Regulations.
2016 v,,hich
states that. the
Coinrniiice
shaii :neet at



National Land Courttissiou Housing Schene lhnd
Anrrual Reports arul l:'ittuttci Slatemenls

For the yeur endc Junc l|lh 2023

ln the
oircumstanccs,
the
Managetncnt
was in blcitch ol
the Regr.tlations.

Kabalc 'l'achc Arcro

Seoletary /C11O

uu,.,........H)mIk

I
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Annex II: Inter-Fund Confirmetion Letter

\}ilD

ut
v.tgdfl,

National Land Commission Mortgage loan Fund

P.O. Box 4'141740100

316 Upper HiIl Chambers

2d Ngong Avenue

Nairobi, I(ENYA

The National Land Q6mrni55ie1 |{ertgage loan Fund wishes to coafirm the amounts disbursed to you as at 306 Juae 2023 as indicatcd
in the table below. Please comparc the amouuts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and. populate the column E in the table

below Please sign and stamp this request in the space provided and retum it to us.
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Reference

Number

Date

Disbursed

Amounts Disbursed by [SC/SAGA,rFund] (I$hs) as at 30th

June 2023

Recurrent

(A)

Development

(B)

Inter-

Ministerial

(c)

Total

(DF(A+Br{)

Amount Received

by [beneficiary

Fundl

(KShs) as at 306

June 2023

(E)

Differences

(KShs)

(F){D-E)

l7 -Sep-22 r 6,000,000 16,000,000 NilFT2I26ONRCYI

F-t212723)x9IJ -Sep-2229 20,000,000 20,000,000 Nil

Totd 36,000,000 36,000,000

In confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as ofthe date indicated.

Head of

Sign Dete

un

Name:

epa ent f beneliciary Fund:

-1,, 
l-=

*l 27
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Annex III: Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures

Name of the Organization

Telephone Number

Email Address

Name of CEO,MDrHead

Name and contact details ofcontact person (in case ofaDy clarifications)

;;,i)

Q4Qr Q2 Q3

I
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